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BEFORE THE INDIAN CLAIMS COHMISSION 

THE SEMINOLE INDIANS OF THE STATE 
OF FLORIDA, 

and 
THE SEMINOLE NATION OF OKLAHOMA, 

P l a i n t i f f s ,  

THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 

Defendant. 

1 
1 
1 
1 
1 

1 
Docket Nos. 73 and 151 

1 (Consolidated) 
1 
1 
) 

Decided: A p r i l  2 7 ,  1976 

FINDINGS OF FACT ON COMPROMISE SETTLEMENT 

The above-captioned consolidated dockets a r e  now before  the  Com- 

mission f o r  approval of a compromise set t lement  and e n t r y  of f i n a l  

judgment i n  the  amount of $16,000,000, with a waiver of review o r  

appeal by e i t h e r  par ty ,  s a id  judgment t o  dispose of a l l  claims, demands, 

payments on the  claim, counterclaims o r  o f f s e t s  which defendant has 

asse r t ed  o r  could have as se r t ed  i n  these  dockets under the  provisions 

of Sect ion 2 of t he  Indian Claims Commission Act, 60 S t a t .  1049, 1050 

(1946). Defendant has reserve3  t h e  r i g h t  t o  a s s e r t  i n  any o the r  

Commission docket t o  which e i t n e r  p l a i n t i f f  is a par ty ,  any o f f s e t s  

a r i s i n g  a f t e r  October 22, 1970. A hearing having been held before  

t h e  Commission on March 26, 1976, on the  proposed compromise se t t lement ,  

t h e  Commission makes t h e  follo-ring f indings  of f a c t :  
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1. History of L i t iga t ion .  On August 14, 1950, and Ju ly  23, 1951, 

the  Seminole Indians of the  S t a t e  of F lo r ida  and t h e  Seminole Nation 

of Oklahoma, respec t ive ly ,  f i l e d  wholly overlapping claim8 for compen- 

s a t i o n  f o r  abor ig ina l  lands  re l inquished  t o  t h e  United S t a t e s  under 

the  Treaty of Camp Moultrie,  September 18,  1823, 7 Sta t .  224, and reserva- 

t i o n  lands  ceded i n  1832. These lands  were approximately i d e n t i f i e d  aa 

a l l  of t h e  present  S t a t e  of F lor ida .  The claims were assigned Dockets 

73 and 151 and the  land claims were consol idated and t r i e d  as a consolidated 

case. 

On May 8, 1964, t he  Commission entered an in t e r locu to ry  decis ion 

i n  Dockets 73 and 151, determining, inter  a l i a ,  t h a t  a t  t h e  time of the 

1823 Camp Moultrie Treaty, t h e  Seminolee had, except f o r  c e r t a i n  

designated a reas ,  abor ig ina l  t i t l e  t o  a l l  of the  present  S t a t e  of 

Florida l y ing  south and east of t h e  Old Spanish Road which connected 

S t .  Augustine a t  t h e  A t l a n t i c  Ocean wi th  Pensacola a t  the  Alabama- 

Flor ida  border.  See 1 3  Ind. C1.  Comn. 326 (1964), a f f  ' d ,  180 C t .  C1. 

375 -(1967). On May 13, 1970, t h e  Commission entered i ts  dec is ion  

determining t h a t  t h e  va lue  on September 18, 1823, of the p l a i n t i f f s  ' 
abor ig ina l  lands,  cons i s t ing  of 23,892,626 ac res ,  was $12,500,000 

See 23 Ind. C1. Connn. 108. On October 22, 1970, t he  Cornmiadon de ter -  - 
mined t h a t  defendant was e n t i t l e d  t o  o f f s e t  c e r t a i n  g r a t u i t i e s  from the  

amount of t h e  in t e r locu to ry  award and entered a f i n a l  award i n  favor 

of t he  p l a i n t i f f s  in t h e  amount of $12,262,780.63 i n  f u l l  se t t lement  
*/ 
.I 

of t h e  claims i n  these consol idated dockets.  See 24 Ind. C1. Corn. 1. 

Both parties appealed from the f i n a l  award and, on February 18, 1972, 

/ No recovery was allowed f o r  the reearva t ion  land. ceded dn 1832, 
t h e  Cor~miasion having concluded a t  23 Ihd. C1. Corm. 108, th.t t h e  
cons idera t ion  was adequate. 
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the Court of Claims remanded these dockets t o  the  Comnission with lnstruc- 

t i o n s  t h a t  the Commiesion make amre spec i f i c  f indings on value and explain 

more f u l l y  the reasoning behind m i d  findings. See 197 C t .  C1. 350 

In  the  same decision, the  Court of Claims di rec ted  t h a t  these dockets 

be consolidated with Conrmiasion Docket No. 280, C.W. McGhee, e t  a l . ,  (Creek 

Nation, East) v. United S ta tes ,  f o r  the  purpose of resolving overlapping claiac. 

The claims i n  Docket 280 were ul t imately dismissedand t h a t  docket severed frm 

consolidated Dockets 73 and 151 (35 Ind. C1.  Comm. 7 ( 1 9 7 4 ) ) ,  but it 

was not u n t i l  January 3, 1976, tha t  the Commission reacquired ju r i s -  

d ic t ion  over the  claims i n  dockets 73 and 151. 

2 .  O f f e r  t o  Compromise. On ~ u l y  24, 1975, counsel f o r  both 

Seminole p l a i n t i f f s  wrote t o  Assietant Attorney General Wallace He 

Johnson formally o f fe r ing  t o  compromise the  claims i n  these dockets. 

That l e t t e r  reads a s  follows: 

In  accordance with the  author i ty  contained i n  the  
enclosed copies of Resolutions of the  Tr ibal  Councils of 
the  Seminole Indians of the  S ta te  of Florida,  and the 
Seminole Nation of Oklahoma, we submit t o  you a formal 
o f f e r  t o  s e t t l e  Seminole Cases, Dockets 73 and 15& 
consolidated, before the  Indian Claims Commission, f o r  
the  ne t  amount of $16,000,000.00. 

Respectdlilly submitted, 

I s /  Roy L. S t ruble  
Roy L. S t ruble  

Is/ Effie Knowles 
Ef f i e  Knowles 

f s/ Charles Bragman 
Charles Bragman, 

/a/ Paul M. Niebell 
Paul M. Niebell,  

Attorney f o r  the  Seminole 
Nation of Oklahoma 

Attorneys f o r  the  Seminole 
Indians of the  S t a t e  of Florida 
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3. Resolutions Authorizing Council t o  Negotiate. Accompanying the  

o f f e r  t o  compromise and refer red  t o  there in  were the  resolut ions  of 

the respective t r i b a l  councils,  which resolut ions  read a s  follows: 

SEMINOLE TRIBE OF FLORIDA 
HOLLYWOOD, FLORIDA 

RESOLUTION NOa C-11-76 

WHEREAS, the  Seminole Tribe of Florida is an organized 
Tribe a s  defined i n  Section 16 of the  Act of June 18, 1934, 
a s  amended, and 

WHEREAS, the  Seminole Indians of The S ta te  of Florida 
and The Seminole Nation of Oklahoma have consolidated Dockela 
Noels 73 and 151 pending before the  Indian C l a w  Conmireion, 
and 

WHEREAS, i t  appears des i rable  t o  compromise and s e t t l e  
sa id  claim, i f  possible,  and 

WHEREAS, Roy L. Struble,  E f f i e  Knowlee, and Charles 
Bragman, claims Attorneys f o r  the  Tribe, have recommended 
t h a t  they be authorized and empowered t o  en te r  i n t o  a 
a t ipu la t ion  f o r  set t lement of sa id  proceeding before the 
Indian Claims Commission, L e e  consolidated Dockets No.'e 
73 and 151, being e n t i t l e d  The Seminole Indians of The S t a t e  
of Florida v. The United S t a t e s  of America, and The Seminole 
Nation of Oklahoma v. The United S ta tes  of America, fo r  
a sum not l e s s  than Sixteen Million Dollars  ($16,000,000.00), 
net .  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED: That Roy L. Struble,  
Ef f i e  Knowles, and Charles Bragman, claims Attorneys afore- 
sa id ,  are hereby authorized t o  en te r  i n t o  a s t i p u l a t i o n  f o r  
settlement of the  proceeding pending before the  Indian 
Claims Commission, e n t i t l e d  consolidated Dockets Noels 73 
and 151, and e n t i t l e d  The Seminole Endians of The S ta te  of 
Florida v. The United S t a t e s  of America, and The Seminole 
Nation of Oklahoma v. The United S ta tes  of America, f o r  a 
sum not l e s s  than a n e t  of Sixteen Million Dollars  
($l6,OOO,OOO. 00). 
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DONE THIS 18th  DAY OF JULY, 1975, a t  a spec ia l  meting 
of the  Tr ibal  Council, duly convened i n  Hollywood, Florida,  
a quorum being preaent, by a vote of 4 fo r ,  none agafnst , 
with no abstentions. 

/s/ Howard E. Tommie 
Chairman 
TRIBAL COUNCIL 

ATTEST : 

j r /  Dorothy S. Osceola 
Secretary 
TRIBAL COUNCIL 

RESOLUTION NO. 75-22 

WHEREAS, the  Seminole Nation of Oklahoma has a c l L h  
agains t  the United S ta tes  f o r  the f a i r  market value of lands 
i n  Florida formerly owned by the Seminole Nation, and sa id  
claim haa been i n  l i t i g a t i o n  before the  Indian Claims 
Commission since 1951, and is designated a s  Docket No. 151, 
and 

WHEREAS, sa id  Docket No. 151 was consolidated f o r  trial 
with a s imi lar  claim of the  Seminole Indians of the S ta te  
of Florida,  designated a s  Docket No. 73, which has a l s o  been 
i n  l i t i g a t i o n  before the  Indian Claims Couuniseion s ince  
1951; and 

WHEREAS, a f t e r  many years of ac t ive  l i t i g a t i o n  the  Indian 
Clairae Commission entered a judgment i n  favor of the Seminole 
p l a i n t i f f s  i n  the  consolidated cases in the net  amount of 
$12,262,780.63, on October 22, 1970, 24 Ind. C1. Conma. 1, 
which on appeal was reuersed by the United S ta tes  Court of 
Claims on February 18, 1972, 197 C t .  C1. 350, and remanded 
t o  the  Indian Claims Com~alseion f o r  more spec i f i c  findings 
of f a c t  t o  j u s t i f y  the  value of sa id  Florida lands as 
determined by the  Connaisaion; and i n  its decision the Court 
ordered the  consolidat ion of the claim of C. W. McGhee, 
e t  a l .  (Creek Nation East) with the  Seminole cases to  
s e t t l e  an overlapping c l a h  of oaid Creek Nation East group 
f o r  some of the  Florida lands included i n  the  judgment in 
the  consolidated Seminole cases,  Dockets 73 and 151; and 
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WHEREAS, counsel f o r  both Seminole groups have succeeded 
a f t e r  t r i a l  and subsequent proceedings i n  having the over- 
lapping claim of C. W. McGhee, e t  aL (Creek Nation East) 
dismissed with prejudice, and cut  away from the  consolidated 
Seminole cases by Order of the Indian Claims Commission 
entered September 13, 1974, 35 Ind. C1. Connn. 7-10; and on 
June 27, 1975 fu r the r  succeeded in having the  United Sta tes  
Court of Claims dismiae the  appeal of eaid C. W. McGhee e t  
a l .  (Creek Nation East) from the September 13, 1974 Order 
of the  Commission, and af f i rm sa id  Order of the  Commiaeion 
dismissing sa id  Creek Nation East claim with prejudice; 
and 

WHEREAS, i t  is the  d e s i r e  of the Seminole Nation of 
Oklahoma t o  s e t t l e  the  claims i n  the  consolidated Seminole 
cases,  Dockets 73 and 151, and thus avoid fu r the r  l i t i g a t i o n  
which could continue f o r  severa l  more years,  with the 
fu ture  l o s s  of i n t e r e s t  on eaid judgment money, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE I T  HEREBY RESOLVED by the  Seminole 
Nation of Indians of the  S t a t e  of Oklahoma, ac t ing  through 
its General Council, a t  i ts  regular ly  ca l l ed  meeting held 
pursuant t o  not ice ,  a t  the  General Council House, Mekusukey 
Miesion, Seminole, Oklahoma, on t h i e  19th day of July,  1975, 
t h a t  Paul M. Niebell,  counsel f o r  the  Seminole Nation of 
Oklahoma i n  Docket No. 151, be and is hereby authorized 
t o  s e t t l e  by s t i p u l a t i o n  of the  p a r t i e s  a s  expedit iously 
as possible the  claim of the Seminole Nation of Oklahoma 
and the Seminole Indians of the  S t a t e  of Florida,  p l a i n t i f f s  
i n  consolidated cases, Dockets 73 and 151, f o r  the t o t a l  
s e t  sum of not l e e s  than $16,000,000.00, without off-sete. 

NOW, THEREFORE, LET I T  BE RESOLVED, That t h i s  reaolu- 
t i o n  as approved be wholly supported by the  Seminole Nation 
of Oklahoma. 

Adopted t h i s  19th day of July,  1975, a t  the meeting 
convened a t  the  Council House, Mekusukey Mission, Seminole, 
Oklahoma, by a vote of 34 for  and 0 against .  

f s/Edwin Tanyan 
Edwin Tanyan, Pr incipal  Chief 
Seminole Nation of Oklahoma 

ATTEST : 

/s/ Corena Mae England 
Secretary, General Council 
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4. Defendant's Conditional Acceptance, By l e t t e r  dated a p t e n b e t  22, 

1975, the  defendant, by Acting Assistant  Attorney General Walter Kiechel, 

Jr. .  accepted the  o f f e r  t o  compromise, subject  t o  the  f o l l a r i n g  conditions: 

1. That the proposed e e t t l e m n t  be approved by appro- 
p r i a t e  resolut ions  of the  governing bodies of the  p l a i n t i f f  
t r ibes .  

2 .  That the  approval of the settlement, a s  w e l l  as the  
resolut ions  of the  t r i b e s ,  be ~ e c u r e d  from the  Secretary of 
the  I n t e r i o r ,  o r  h i s  authorized representat ive,  

3. That a copy of each resolut ion and the  approval of 
the  t e r n  of the  set t lement by the  Department of the  I n t e r i o r  
be furnished t o  t h i s  Department. 

4. That the  judgments entered i n t o  pursuant t o  t h i s  
set t lement s h a l l  f i n a l l y  dispose of a l l  claims o r  demands 
which the  p l a i n t i f f s  have asserted o r  could have asser ted  
i n  Docket Nos. 73 and 151 before the Indian Claims Coxdesion. 

5 That the  United Sta tes  w i l l  waive any and a l l  
claims f o r  o f f s e t s  which have been asser ted  o r  could have 
been asser ted  agains t  the p l a i n t i f f  t r i b e s  under the  provi- 
s ions  of sec t ion  2 of t h e  Indian Claims Commistsion Act up 
t o  October 22, 1970. 

6, That the  aettlsment is conditioned on a p r io r  f i n a l  
d i spos i t ion  of any overlapping claim i n  the  case of McGhee 
(Creek Nation East) v. United States.  Docket No. 280, before 
the Indian Claims Commiseion. 

7. That the  Comolission s h a l l  approve of t h i e  set t lement 
and the  s t i p u l a t i o n  before t h e  judgment i a  entered. 

5 .  Resolution Accepting Compromise - General Council of Seminole 

Nation of Oklahoma. To comply with condition 1 of the  defmdant 'a  letter 

of acceptance, a meeting of the  General Council of the  Seminole Nation of 

Oklahoma was convened on September 27, 1975, pursuant t o  notice.  The 

General Council which, pursuant t o  t h e  Conati tut iaa of the  Seminole Nation 
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of Oklahoma, h u  the povar t o  act on behalf of the Nation i n  all matters 

i n  which the Nation $8 empowered t o  act, approved the following resolution 

by a vote of i n  favor and 2 againa t : 

RESOLUTION NO. 75-31 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING SETTLgMENT OF THE FLORIDA LAND 
CLAIMS FOR $16,000,000.00. 

WHEREAS, the Saminole Nation of Oklahoma hee previously 
authorized its c l a i m  attoraoy to  mottle the Florida Land 
Claiofs for not lee8 than $16,000,000.00 with no offsets ,  and 

WHEREAS, the clainrs attomop h u  now advised that  the 
claim haa been r a t t l ed  f o r  $16,000,000.00 with no offsets ,  
for the combined claim of tho Sa lno lo  Nation of Oklahoma 
and the S d n o l e  Tribe of Florida, 

NOW TllEBEFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the General Council 
of the Seminole Nation of Okhhoum tha t  the settlement of 
$16,000,000.00 be, and it hamby i r ,  approved and accepted. 

PASSED AND APPROVED by tho bacrral Council of t he  
Seminole Nation of Oklahoma this 27 September 1975 a t  
Hekusukey, Oklahaam, by a vote of 31 for ,  0 againat, and 
0 abstaining, a quorum of 22 Couacll Members being preaent. 

Is/ Edwin Tanyan 
Edwin Tanyan, Principal Chief 
Seminole Nation of Oklahoma 

ATTEST : APPROVED BY MUSKOGEE AREA, BIA 

Is/ Coreru -land By : 
Corena England, Secretary of Area Director 
the General Council of the 
Seminole Nation of Oklahoma Date: 

6. Same--Tribal Council of Seminole Tribe of Florida. A like reeolution, 

dated November 21, 1975, waa approved by the Tribal Council of the Seminole 



reads as follows: 

SEMINOLE TRIBE OF FLORIDA 
HOLLYWOOD, FLORIDA 

RESOLUTION NO. C-51-76 

WHEREAS, the Ssminole Tribe of Florida l a  an organized 
Tribe as defined i n  Suction 18 of the  Act of June 18, 1934, as 
amended; and 

WHEREAS, the  Seminole Indians of The Sta te  of Florida,  
and The Seminole Nation of Oklahoma have consolidated Dockets 
Nos. 73 and 151 pending before the Indian Claims C o d s a l o n ;  
and 

WHEREAS, the  Bureau of Indian Affa i rs ,  U.S. Department 
of t h e  I n t e r i o r ,  has ra i sed  some question with respect  t o  
approvalof the  set t lement authorized t o  be made by the  
C l a i m  Attorneys (per Resolution No. C-11-76 copy attached 
hereto)  involving the  pending Dockets Nos. 73 and 151 before 
Indian Claims Commieaim; and 

WHEREAS, the Chairmarr recommended the  adoption of the  
following resolution:  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED: That the Tr ibal  Council 
approves the proposed settlement of Clainm Dockets Nos. 73 
and 151 pending before Indian Claims Cammission f o r  the  
t o t a l  f i g u r e  of Sixteen Million Dollare ($16,000,000.00) 
net .  In other words, no o f f s e t s  a r e  t o  be charged agains t  
t h i s  amount. 

DONE THIS 21st DAY OF NOVEMBER, 1975, a t  a regular  
meeting of the Tr ibal  Council, duly convened i n  liol~yuood, 
Florida,  a quorum being present ,  by: a vote of S fo r ,  none 
agains t ,  and with no abstentions,  

ATTEST : 

/s/ Dorothy S. Osceola 
Secretary-Treasurer 
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7. Sa t i s fac t ion  of Condition. Condition 6 of the defendant'a le t ter  

of acceptance, aupra, required a pr ior  f ina l  d isposi t ion  of any overlapping 

claim i n  t h e  case of C. W. HcGhee, et  a l e  (Creek Nation, Eaet) v. United 

Sta tes ,  Docket 280. This condition has been s a t i s f i e d  as a r e s u l t  of the 

~ouunission's dismissal  of t h a t  case. See 35 Ind. C1. Coam. 7 (1974) .  

reh. denied, 35 Ind. C1. Counn. 117 (1974), appeal dismieeed, App. No. 

1-75 (Ct. C l . ,  June 27, 1975), reh. denied, Oct. 3, 1975. 

8. P o l i t i c a l  Organization of Semlnole Indians in Florida,  Seminole 

Indians in Flor ida  are organized i n t o  three repara te  p o l i t i c a l  e n t i t i e r .  

The l a r g e s t  Seminole p o l i t i c a l  e n t i t y ,  wi th  an enrolled manbermhip of 

1,230 persons, is the  Seminole Tribe of Florida,  Members of the  Seminole 

Tribe of Flor ida  rea ide  on three  Federal reservations--Brighton, Big 

Cypreaa and Hollywood--in the  routhern port ion of the  S t a t e  of Florida. 

The Seminole Tribe of Florida l a  an organized t r i b e  of American Indiana 

recognized by the  Department of the  In te r io r .  

A second group of Florida Seminoles, numbering approximately 400 

persons, i r  the  Miaeosukee Tribe of Indiana of Florida. This group i e  

also an organized t r i b e  of American Indianr and i t 3  recognized by the 

Department of the  In te r io r .  There i r  a S t a t e  rerervat ion,  the MiccoSukee 

Indian Reservation, where ~ o m e  member. of t h i r  group apparently reaide. 

Others, according t o  t e s t i rony  a t  the  mt t lement  hearing before the 

Commiasfon, i n f r a ,  r e s ide  i n  cop. i n  and around Immokalec, Florida. - 
A t h i r d  group of Florida Seminaler i. the  Everglades Micco8ube 

Tribe of Seminole Indime. Accordhg t o  teatipwy a t  the  ret t l -ent  
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hearing, members of t h i s  group, numbering approximately 40 persons, reaide 

i n  three  camps, located near Naples, Florida. The Everglade8 M i c ~ o d c e e  

Tribe of Seminole Indians i a  not p o l i t i c a l l y  a f f i l i a t e d  with the  reserva- 

t i o n  organizations nor do they p a r t i c i p a t e  i n  Federally sponsored services.  

By l e t t e r  dated January 27, 1958, the  Conmissioner of Indian Affairs  

recognized t h i s  group ". . . t o  speak f o r  and on behalf of those Indians 

who have a f f i l i a t e d  with the  organization. . ." and ". . . t o  speak f o r  i t s  

members on matters  which are of concern t o  the  Florida Seminolee a s  a 

whole (much a s  the pending claim against  the United S ta tes ) .  . ." (See 

Corn. Ex. No. 1.) 

The Commission has previously determined t h a t  a11 Florida Seminoles, 

regardless of p o l i t i c a l  a f f i l i a t i o n ,  a r e  represented i n  the  claim denomi- 

nated Docket No. 73. See 19 Ind. C1. Co~lm. 440 (1968). 

9. Notice t o  Florida Seminoles of January 22. 1976 Meetin.. The 

Seminole Tribe of Florida prepared the following notice,  dated January 7, 

1976, of the general meeting of Florida Seminoles convened t o  discuss and 

vote on the  proposed settlement: 
HOLLYWOD, FLORIDA 33024 

NOTICE OF GENERAL MEETING JANUARY 7, 1976 

TO: ALL MEMBERS OF THE SEMINOLE 
OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA [ s i c ]  

NOTICE IS  HEREBY GIVEN THAT A GENEIUL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS OF 
THE SEMINOLE TRIBE OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA WILL BE: 

JANUARY 22, 1976 
10:oo A.M. 

THE PURPOSE OF THE MEETING WILL BE TO CONSIDER AND PASS UPON A 
PROPOSED SETTLEMENT OF THE LAND CLAIMS OF THE SEHINOtE TRIBE OF 
THE STATE OF FLORIDA AND OF THE SEMINOLE NATION OF OKLAHOHA VS. 
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UNITED STATES GOVERNHENT PENDING BEFORE THE INDIAN CLAIMS 
COMMISSION, NO. 73-151, FOR THE NET SUM OF SIXTEEN MILLION 
DOLLARS ($16,000,000.00). 

THE TRIBAL COUNCIL HAS HERETOFORE APPROVED SAID SETTLEMENT, 
AND I T  APPEARS NECESSARY AND'ADVISABLE THAT CONSIDERATION AND 
APPROVAL BE GIVEN BY ALL MEMBERS OF THE SMINOLE TRIBE OF THE 
STATE OF FLORIDA. 

ALL SEMINOLE INDIANS ARE URGED TO ATTEND THIS MEETING. 

Testimony a t  the  eettlement b e r i n g  before the  Conuni8aion, i n f r a ,  in- 

dicated t h a t  2 1/2 t o  3 web before the  meeting approxirutely 300 copieo 

of t h i s  not ice  were printed and d i s t r ibu ted  by hand on the th ree  Seminole 

federa l  reservations and a t  tha Saainole v i l l a g e  of Imwkalee, Florida; 

t h a t  copies of the  printed no t i ce  were mailed t o  the  o f f i c e  of the  

Miccoaukee Tribe of Indians of Florida;  tha t  not ice  of the  meeting waa 

published i n  The Al l i ea to r  Timer, a newspaper publiehed by the  t r i b a l  

council of the  Seminole Tribe of Florida;  and i n  l o c a l  newspapers of 

general c i r c u l a t i o n  ouch a s  the  Miami Herald; t h a t  no t i ce  of the meeting 

was broadcaet on t e lev i s ion  and radio i n  south Florida;  and t h a t  

many Seminoles were informed of the meeting by telephone and d i r e c t  

conversation. 

10. Meeting of Florida Seminolee. On January 22, 1976, a general 

meeting of the  membere of the Slaainole Tribe of the  S t a t e  of Florida 

was held a t  the  Gymnas ium Building of the  R o l l m o d  Indian R e ~ r v a t i o n ,  

flollyvood, Florida. This meeting waa open t o  a l l  Sminole  Indian. 

in Florida and was attended by 376 S e a h o l e  Indians. M r .  Howard E. 
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Tommie, t h e  e l ec t ed  Chairman (Chief) of t h e  SLainole Tribe of F lo r ida  

presided over t h e  meeting. 

A t  t h e  m e t i n g ,  t he  t r i b a l  c l a i m  a t torney ,  M r .  Roy St ruble ,  

presented a comprehensive review of t h e  Seminole h i s t o r y  t h a t  l e d  up 

t o  t h e  land claim s u i t  and reviewed t h e  procedures and a c t i v i t i e s  

r e l a t i v e  t o  t h e  claim from i ts  i n i t i a t i o n  t o  t h e  present .  He a l s o  ex- 

plained the  terms of t h e  proposed set t lement .  Questions were asked 

regarding the  se t t lement ,  inc luding  t h e  a l t e r n a t i v e  of continuing t h e  

case  f o r  poss ib le  se t t lement  f o r  a sum higher than the  proposed sum of 

$16,000,000.00. Questions were a l s o  aeked regarding the  p a r t i c i p a t i o n  

i n  t h e  claim of the  Oklahoma Seminoles and how they would share  i n  the  

se t t lement .  M r .  S t rub le  and M r .  Tommie a l s o  explained t h e  genera l  process 

t h a t  w i l l  be necessary a f t e r  t h e  se t t lement  becomes e f f e c t i v e  and before  

a c t u a l  d i s t r i b u t i o n  can be made. Chief Tommie t r ans l a t ed  t h e  proceedings 

i n t o  t h e  Miccosukee language and he, a s s i s t e d  by Stanley Johns, t h e  

Councilman of t h e  Brighton Reservation, t r a n s l a t e d  the  proceedings 

i n t o  the  Creek language. 

Af ter  t h r e e  hours of d iscuss ion ,  M r .  Totmrie c a l l e d  f o r  a v o t e  on 

t h e  following reso lu t ion:  

Be it the re fo re  resolved t h a t :  following t h e  
d iscuss ion  of t h e i r  land claim pending before t h e  
Indian Claims Conmiasion i n  accept ing the proposed 
$16,000,000 compromise se t t lement  t h e  members of t h e  
Seminole Tribe of F lo r ida  he re  assembled endorse t h e  
a c t i o n s  of t h e  e l ec t ed  Council of t h e  Seminole Tribe 
of F lor ida .  
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Seven persons voted agains t  t h i s  resolut ion;  almqst dl other. preeent 

voted f o r  the  resolution.  

Testimony a t  the  settlement hearing before the  Commie8ion indicated 

t h a t  approximately f i v e  Miccosukee Seminoles from the  cmpe near Naples, 

Florida,  attended the  meeting but that none of them asked queationr. I n  

addit ion,  testimony a t  the settlement hearing indicated that one Mike 

Oeceola who i a  a member of the  Seminole Tribe of Florida but l i v e s  i n  the 

area  of the  th ree  camps near Naples did speak a t  length a t  the  m e t i n g .  

A l l  Seminole Indians i n  Florida,  whether o r  not membere of the  organized 

Seminole Tribe of Florida, were e n t i t l e d  t o  at tend and vote  a t  the  meeting. 

11. Approval of the  Secretary of thg In te r io r .  On October 1, 1975, 

counsel f o r  both p l a i n t i f f s  addressed a l e t t e r  t o  the  Honorable W r r i s  

Thompson, Commissioner of Indian Affa i rs ,  requesting h i e  approval of the 

proposed eettlement. In  a l e t t e r  dated March 10, 1976, addreseed t o  

Paul M. Niebell,  at torney f o r  the Seminole Nation of Oklahoma, Com~iesioner 

Thompson, who is  the authorized representa t ive  of the Secretary of t h e  

I n t e r i o r ,  approved the  settlement. In  per t inent  p a r t ,  the  Counnireioner ' 8 

l e t t e r  s t a t e s  a s  follows: 

On Ju ly  24, 1975, you sent  a letter t o  the  Honorable Wallace 
H. Johnson, Assistant  Attorney General of the United S ta tes ,  
o f fe r ing  t o  s e t t l e  the  claims i n  dockets 73 and 151 i n  the 
Indian Claime Commission i n  favor of the Seminole Indians 
of the  State of Florida and the Seminole Nation of Oklahoma 
i n  the amount of $16,000,000. This o f f e r  was gccepted by 
the  Acting Assietant  Attorney General Walter Kiechel, Jr,, 
on September 22, 1975, subject  t o  c e r t a i n  conditions, namely, 
t h a t  the  proposed eettlernent be approved by appropriate 
resolut ions  of the  governing bodiee of the  p l a i n t i f f  t r i b e s ;  
that the  approval of the settlement be eecured from the  
U c r e t a r y  of the I n t e r i o r  o r  h i s  authorized representat ive;  



and tha t  copies of the  t r i b a l  reigolutions and the  approval 
of the  terms of the  set t lement by the  Department of the  
I n t e r i o r  be furnished t o  the  Department of Jus t ice .  

TRIBAL APPROVAL OF THE SETTL- 

The Seminoles of Florida: 

The proposed compromise set t lement waa i n i t i a l l y  considered 
by the  Seminole Tr ibal  Council, the  governing body of the  
Seminole Tribe of Florida,  i n  a specia l  jo in t  aesaion with 
the Seminole Board of Directors which represents  the  Seminole 
Tribe of Florida. Inc. By Resolution C-11-76 enacted on 
July 18, 1975, the Seminole Tr ibal  Council by a vote of 
four f o r  and none agains t ,  authorized the  t r i b a l  claims 
counsel, Attorneys Roy L. Struble,  Ef f i e  Knowlee, and 
Charles Bragman, t o  enter  i n t o  a s t ipu la t ion  f o r  the 
settlement of the  claims i n  dockets 73 and 151, and by 
Resolution C-51-76, enacted November 21, 1975, formally 
approved the proposed compromise settlement by a vote of 
f ive f o r  and none against .  

On November 6, 1975, Superintendent Duane C. Moxon of 
the Seminole Agency c e r t i f i e d  that the  signatures appear- 
ing on Resolution C-11-76 a r e  those of Mr. Howard Tounnie, 
Chairman of the  Seminole Tr ibal  Coumil,  and Dorothy S. 
Osceola, Secretary of the  Seminole Tr ibal  Council. The 
same s ignatures  appear on Resolution C-51-76. 

The i n i t i a l  submittal  of the  proposed compromise f o r  
t r i b a l  approval by the Seminole Tribe of Florida did not 
follow i n  whole established procedures a s  s e t  out i n  the  
Omaha decision (8 Ind. C1. Connn. 416). We were concerned 
whether the  procedure t h a t  was followed resul ted  in 
the  necessary t r i b a l  understanding of and consent by 
the  t r i b a l  members t o  the proposed settlement. Our 
pr inc ipa l  concern involved the l ack  of a general meeting 
of the  t r i b a l  membership a t  which the  claims a t torneys  
explain t o  the  t r i b a l  members the  "pros and cona" of 
disposing by compromise of the  iasues involved ra the r  
than resolving them by l i t i g a t i o n .  The usual procedure 
involves an i n i t i a l  general meeting of the t r i b a l  
membership, and upon its acceptance of the  propoeed 
set t lement a subsequent meeting of the  t r i b a l  gwerning 



body to consider the eettlement. You and the claims attorneys 
representing the Seminole Tribe of Florida diligently proceeded 
to rectify this lack and made arrangements for full discussion 
of the proposed compromise by the tribal members. 

On January 22, 1976, Claims Attorney Roy Struble presented 
to the Seminole tribal membership the matter of the propoeed 
compromise. Notice of the meeting was ieaued on January 8, 
1976, 300 copies of which were well distributed on each of the 
three Florida SemFaole reeervationcl: IIollplood, Big Cypress 
and Brighton. Copies of the notice were poated in the tribal 
offices and the Seminole Indian Agency. 

The meeting was attended by 376 tribal members and chaired 
by Mr. Howard E. Tommie, Chairman of the Seminole Tribal 
Council. Claipls Attorney Struble presented a comprehensive 
review of the Seminole history that led to the land claim 
suit and reviewed the procedures and activitieq of the tribal 
claim form its initiation to the present. This presentation 
was interpreted in the Miccoeuki language by Chairman Tommie 
and in the Creek language by Chairman Tommie aa asaioted by 
Mr. Stanlo Johns, Brighton Reservation Councilman. 

Questions were asked regarding the alternative of continuing 
the case for possible settlement higher than the proposed 
$16,000,000 eettlement and regarding the Seminoler of Oklahoma 
participating in the claim and sharing in the settlement. 
Superintendent Moxon, who attended the meeting, feels that 
the tribal members who were at the meeting of January 22 
were given a full explanation of the proposed compromise 
and through discussion of it that the members understand 
the nature of their claims and the terms of the propoeed 
settlement. Chairman Tommie called for a vote on the 
following resolution of the general tribal meeting: 

"Be it therefore resolved that: following the 
discussion of their land claim pending before 
the Indian Claime Commission in accepting the 
proposed $16,000,000 compromise settlement the 
members of the Seminole Tribe of Florida here 
assembled endorse the actione of the elected 
Council of the Seminole Tribe of Florida." 

The resolution was adopted with only seven dieeenting votes 
against it. 
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We are satisfied that the general tribal meeting was well 
publicized and that the tribal members had an opportunity to 
attend. The meeting was satiefactorily conducted with the 
voting held after the members had the opportunity to coneider 
fully the proposed compromise. The meetings of the Seminole 
Tribal Council at which Resolutions C-11-76 and C-51-76 were 
adopted were also satisfactorily called and conducted with 
the resolutions approving the eettlenent being duly adopted. 
The resolutions are hereby approved. 

The .Seminoles of Oklahoma: 

The proposed compromise was first discussed by the Seminole 
General Council, the governing body of the Seminole Nation 
of Oklahoma, at its meeting of July 19, 1975. At this 
meeting the information contained in your letter of July 
15, 1975, addressed to Principal Chief Edwin Tanyan, which 
suvlmarizee the history of the claims in docket8 73 and 151 
and explainsthe baais for the proposed compromise, was 
fully discussed and deliberated upon. Following such 
deliberation, Resolution 75-22 was adopted by the general 
council by a vote of 34 for and none against authorizing 
you to settle the claims by stipulation of the parties as 
expeditiously as possible for the sum of $16,000,000. 

The proposed compromise was again fully discussed by the 
general council at its meeting of July 31, 1975, at which 
time the action taken by.that body on July 19, 1975, was 
affirmed by a vote of 27 for, 3 against, with one absten- 
tion. It was again deliberated upon at a special general 
council meeting held on September 27, 1975, at which 
Resolution 75-31 wae adopted by an unanimous vote of 31 
to nothing approving the eettlement of the claims in 
dockets 73 and 151. 

The Seminole General Council of Oklahoma is composed of 42 
members (three representatives from each of 12 Seminole bands 
or "towns" and from each of the two freedmen bands or 
"towns") and provides an effective two-way coppllunication 
between the tribal membership and the tribal governing 
body. Discussion of all matters to be brought before the 
general council takes place in band meetings held prior 
to each general council seealon and the band representa- 
tives are instructed by their constituents on the position 
to be taken by them at the general council at least 10 
days prior to the date of each meeting, except in unusual 
cases when a shorter notice of such meeting must be made. 



Both Superintendent Buford Morrison and the  Acting Area 
Director of t h e  Muskogee Area Office  f e e l  t h a t  the question 
of accepting o r  r e j e c t i n g  the  compromise a e t t l c m t  of the  
Florida land claims has had f u l l  d isc losure  of a11 per t inent  
i ssues  per ta in ing t o  the  claims case. Subsequent t o  each 
of the  general  council meetings of J u l y 1 9 ,  Ju ly  31, and 
September 27, 1975, Acting Area Director Kennedy of t h e  
Mushgee Area Office advieeo that band representat ive8 
reported t o  t h e i r  const i tuents  a complete account of the  
council proceedings, and gleaned from band members 
reconmrendatione t o  be refer red  t o  the  General Council. 

We a r e  s a t i s f i e d  t h a t  the  general  council  meeting8 were 
w e l l  publicized and s a t i s f a c t o r i l y  conducted with the  voting 
held a f t e r  the  members had the  opportunity t o  coneider 
f u l l y  the  proposed compromise with Resolution 75-31 approv- 
ing the  proposed compromise being duly adopted. 

In  l i g h t  of the  information on f i l e  i n  t h i e  office and 
t h a t  obtained from o ther  aourcee, we are s a t i s f i e d  t h a t  
the  proposed set t lement of dockets 73 and 151 has been 
adequately presented t o  the  t r i b a l  members of both the  
Florida and Oklahoma Seminoles and t h a t  the  acceptance of 
the set t lement a t  t h e i r  reepective meetingo repreeente the 
consensus of both t r ibea .  Therefore, a s  our information 
ind ica tes  t h a t  the  proposed settlement is f a i r  and j u a t ,  
the  set t lement is hereby approved. 

12. St ipula t ion.  A s t i p u l a t i o n  f o r  ent ry  of f i n a l  judgment was agreed 

to  by counsel for a l l  pa r t i e s .  h e  r t i p u l a t i o n  reads: 

STIPULATION FOR ENTRY OF' FINAL -. 

It is hereby s t ipu la ted  and agreed between counsel f o r  
the  p a r t i e s  t h a t  the  above e n t i t l e d  consolidated case8 s h a l l  
be s e t t l e d  and disposed of by the  ent ry  of f i n a l  judgment 
by the  Indian Claim8 Commission i n  favor of the  Seminole 
Indians of the  S t a t e  of Florida and the  Seminole Nation of 
Oklahoma, and againet  the  United S t a t e s  i n  t h e  t o t a l  n e t  
sum of Sixteen Mill ion Dollars  ($16,000,000.00), and that 
no review therefrom i a  to be sought by e i t h e r  of the p a r t i e r .  

That no o f f s e t  c l a w  are t o  be aeeerted agains t  eaid 
judgarent so  entered, and the  United States hereby waiver 
any and a11 claim f o r  o f f e e t e  which have been asser ted  
o r  could have been asser ted  againet  the  p l a i n t i f f s  in thir 
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case under the  provisions of Section 2 of the  Indian Claims 
Commission Act. However, the  United S ta tes  reoerves and 
does not vaive Its r i g h t  t o  a s s e r t  of fuete  a r i s i n g  a f t e r  
October 22, 1970, i f  any, i n  any 
before the  Commiesion. 

o ther  SPminole case pending 

Nothing connected with t h i s  
a s  an admission of e i t h e r  of the  
f o r  purposes of precedent In any 

compromise may be conetrued 
pa r t i ee  a s  t o  any i ssues  
other case. 

/a/ Paul M. Niebell 
Paul M, Niebell 

Attorney f o r  the Seminole Nation 
of Oklahoma, P l a i n t i f f  

/s/ Roy L. Struble 
Roy L. Struble PMN* 

/s/ Eff ie  Knowles 
E f f i e  Knowlee PMN* 

/a/ Charles Bragman 
Charlee Bragman PMN* 

Attorneys f o r  the  Seminole Indians 
of the  S ta te  of Florida,  P l a i n t i f f s  

/s/ Peter  R. Taft 
Peter  R. Taft 

Assistant  Attorney General 

/e/ A. Donald Mileur 
A. Donald Mileur, Attorney 
Department of J u s t i c e  

l a /  Craig A. Decker 
Craig A. Decker, Attorney 
Department of J u s t i c e  

Attorneys f o r  the  United Sta tes ,  
Defendant, 

* The i n i t i a l s  "PMN" apparently mean t h a t  M r .  Paul M. Niebell 
ac tua l ly  signed the  names of the  respect ive  a t torneys  f o r  
the  Seminole Indians of the  S t a t e  of Florida. 
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13. Coamnrnications t o  Cornmiasion from Everglades Miccosukee Tribe 

of Seminole Indians; March 21, 1976, and March 24, 1976. The following 

l e t t e r  dated March 21, 1976, and telegram dated March 24, 1976, were 

received by the  Commission from the  Everglade. Miccosukee Tribe of 

Seminole Indians, the  former haviag been admitted i n t o  evidence a s  

Exh. No. S-10, and the l a t t e r  admitted i n t o  evidence a s  Cotmni8sion 

Exhibit No. 2 by the  accompanying ordert  

W e  have read i n  the  newspapers where a l l  Indiane i n  
Florida a r e  supposed to  have held a meeting end approved a 
so-called $16,000,000 settlement. We a l s o  heard the  BIA 
sent  out not ices  of the meeting. This is not t rue .  We don't 
know any Indians who received such a notice.  We were never 
no t i f i ed  of any such meeting and do not approve of any 
so-called $16,000,000 set t lement.  And we a r e  sending you 
the l e t t e r  of recognit ion U.S. Indian Commiesioner Glenn 
Emmons gave our  Tribe agreeing t h a t  our council muet approve 
any such set t lement,  and the  letter U.S. Secretary of 
I n t e r i o r  Seaton signed himself approving M r .  Emmona agreement 
dated Jan. 27, 1958, on July 12, 1960. 

The lawyers who f i l e d  t h i s  ao-called claim #73 25 years 
ago f o r  $50,000,000 and the  lawyere who made t h i r  so-called 
settlement f o r  $16,000,000 are not our lawyers and never 
have been. The Indian called Howard Tommie, who eaye 
he speaks f o r  all Indiana i n  Florida does not rpeak f o r  
our t r i b e  o r  t r i b a l  council and never has. He has never 
been on our council and has never been i n  our t r i b e ,  He is 
a Muskogee and has never had any author i ty  t o  represent  
our t r i b e  o r  make any so-called $16,000,000 settlement8 f o r  
our Miccosukee Nation o r  t r i b a l  council.  For 25 years we 
have t r i e d  t o  te l l  you t h a t  the  individual  Indians who 
made the  so-called claim 673, 25 yeare ago i n  the name of 
a l l  the  Indiana i n  Florida,  were not then and never have 
been representa t ives  of a l l  the  Indiane of Florida o r  
our Miccosukee Nation- but you were a f ra id  t o  hear t h i s  
t r u t h  and a f r a i d  t o  even l e t  u8 have a hearing-whlch everyone 
I s  suppoeed t o  have under your const i tu t ion.  It was a fake 
money claim 25 years ago whdn i t  e ta r t ed ,  and it i r  a fake 
money claim today. 
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We cannot s top -you  from giving away U.S. money to  who- 
ever you want  to .  But we want t o  make i t  c l e a r  t o  you and 
the r e s t  of  the world before you try  to  t e l l  everyone you 
are g iv ing  your money t o  a l l  the Flo r ida  Ind ians ,  that  our  - 
Tribe  does  not want your money and we have never asked for 
it. Our Miccosukee Seminole Nation has never made any claim 
f o r  money i n  your Commission o r  any place e l e e  i n  t h e  U.S. 
government. 

For 25 yea r s  we have told you and t h e  U.S. we want our 
l and ,  no t  money. 

And w e  know that the U.S. has made strong t r e a t i e s ,  
s t ronger  than your Commission, where the U.S. must p r o t e c t  
o u r  people and our F l o r i d a  lands  f o r  us  forever .  These 
;strong t r e a t i e s  say you cannot l e t  anyone trick us o u t  of 
lour l ands  and you cannot f o r c e  u s  t o  s e l l  i t .  Our land 
is not  f o r  sale.  

We are sending you a copy of our  l e t t e r  t o  P r e s .  Ford, 
Feb. 2 ,  1976 and a t t o r n e y  genera l  Levi, Feb. 3, 1976 and 
Mar. 1 6 ,  1976, and our l e t t e r  t o  t he  U.S. Congress c /o  
Bella Abzug, Mar. 16 ,  1976. 

Cert. // 129940 R e t .  Rec. Req. The Executive Council 
Copy Sent t o  Cong. Bella Abzug 

Howard Osceola 
Douglas Osceola 
Homer Osceola 
B i l l  McKinfey Osceola 

C l a i m  # 73 - AND ALL OTHER MONEY CLAIMS 

OUR TRIBE, YOU SOMETIMES CALL THE MICCOSUKEE SEMINOLE NATION, 
WAS NEVER NOTIFIED OF ANY SO-CALLED JANUARY MEETINGS FOR ALL 
FLORIDA INDIANS AND NO ONE EVER ASKED FOR OUR TRIBE'S APPROVAL 
OF THE SO-CALLED $16,000,000. SETTLEMENT WITH ALL FLORIDA 
INDIANS-WHICH OUR TRIBE DOES NOT APPROVE- AND WHICH APPROVAL 
YOU WILL SEE IS NECESSARY FROM THE LETTER YOU WILL GET FROM 
OUR TRIBE NARCH 25, 1976 ENCLOSING BOTH COMMISSIONER EMMON'S 
JAN, 2 7 ,  1958 AGREEMENT AND SECRETARY OF INTERIOR SEATON'S 
JULY 12, 1960 AGREEMENT WITH OUR TRIBE. 

OUR TRIBE HAS TOLD YOU MANY TIMES, OVER 25 YEARS, THAT THIS 
UNAUTHORIZED CLAIM #73 WAS NEVER MADE OR AUTHORIZED BY OUR 
TRIBE. ALL INDIANS AND LAWYERS WHO HAVE EVER HAD ANYTHING 
TO DO WITH STARTING AND MAKING CLAIM 673 AND THE SO-CALLED 
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$16,000,000. SETTLEMENT, SUCH AS HOWARD TOMMIE, HAVE NEVER 
HAD ANY LAWYERS REPRESENTING OUR TRIBE IN CLAIM 873, OR 
ANY OTHER CLAIM FOR MONEY- EXCEPT TO FIGHT IT .  

THEREFORE, IF YOU TRY TO TELL EVERYONE YOU ARE GIVING YOUR 
MONEY TO ALL FLORIM-.INDWS, OUT OF CLAIM #73, OR ANY 
OTHER CLAIM, WE WANT TO MAKE IT CLEAR TO YOU AND THE WORLD 
THAT OUR TRIBE DOES NOT WANT YOUR MONEY AND HAVE NEVER 
ASKED FOR ANY MONEY FROM YOUR COMMISSION OR ANYONE ELSE. 

YOU SHOULD KNOW THE U. S. MADE STRONG TREATIES THAT PROTECT 
OUR TRIBE AND OUR FLORIDA LANDS FOR US FOREVER-SO 110 ONE 
CAN TRICK US OUT OF THE LA.NRS OR FORCE US TO SELL IT. 
OUR LAND IS NOT FOR SALE. 

MARCH 24,  1976 
EXECUTIVE COUNCIL 
EVERGLADES MICCOSUKEE TRIBE OF SEMINOLE INDIANS 
HOWARD OSCEOLA 
HOMER OSCEOLA 
DOUGLAS OSCEOLA 
BILL MCKINLEY OSCEOLA 
JOHN OSCEOLA 

14.  Set t lement  Hearing Before t h e  Commission; March 26, 1976. By 

order  of March 17, 1976, the  Commission set  a hearing on the  proposed 

se t t l ement  on March 26, 1976, a t  t h e  hear ing room of t h e  Commission i n  

Washington, D. C. A t  the hearing s i x   emi in ole Ind ians  who are members of 

t h e  Seminole Tribe of F lo r ida  t e s t i f i e d  t h a t  they favored the se t t l ement  

and a l s o  t e s t i f i e d  regard ing  all aspects of t h e  settlement procedures,  

as  d id  three Seminole Indians who a r e  members of t he  Seminole Nation of 

Oklahoma. 

Mr. Howard E. Tommie t e s t i f i e d  t h a t  he lives i n  Hollywood, Florida; 

t h a t  he is t h e  elected Chairman o r  Chief of the Seminole Tribe of F lo r ida ;  



and t h a t  he p r e s i d e d  over  t h e  d i s s e m i n a t i o n  of n o t i c e  of t h e  January 2 2 ,  

1976, Seminole meeting and t h e  meet ing i t s e l f .  He t e s t i f i e d  t h a t  he 

b e l i e v e d  t h a t  g e n e r a l  n o t i c e  of t h e  meeting had been e f f e c t i v e l y  g iven  

t o  a l l  Seminole I n d i a n s  i n  F l o r i d a .  When asked whether he  b e l i e v e d  t h a t  

members of  t h e  Everglades  Miccosukee T r i b e  of Seminole I n d i a n s  had 

rece ived  n o t i c e  of t h e  meet ing he t e s t i f i e d  t h a t  some Seminoles from 

t h e  a r e a  where t h e s e  Miccosukees l i v e  were p r e s e n t  a t  t h e  meeting 

and f u r t h e r  s t a t e d  as f o l l o w s  

. . . we know t h a t  i t  [ t h e  c l a i m ]  i s  a common 
i n t e r e s t  among Ind ian  people  and i t  is d i s c u s s e d  among 
Indian people.  And we have close--we do n o t  have a 
l a r g e  popula t ion .  

So, any i n t e r e s t  among t h e  I n d i a n  people  is d i s -  
cussed .  So t h e  amount of n o t i c e  i n  my mind, w a s  
t h e r e  were n o t i f i e d ,  by v e r b a l l y  o r  by t h e  n o t i c e s  
t h a t  were s e n t  out. [sic] 

Dorothy Osceola t e s t i f i e d  t h a t  s h e  l i v e s  on t h e  Hollywood Reserva t ion  

and t h a t  s h e  is Secre ta ry -Treasure r  of t h e  T r i b a l  Counci l  of t h e  Seminole 

T r i b e  of F l o r i d a .  She t e s t i f i e d  t h a t  n o t i c e  of t h e  meeting was d i s t r i b u t e d  

2 1 / 2  t o  3 weeks p r i o r  t o  t h e  meeting,  and t h a t  t h e  w r i t t e n  n o t i c e  was 

given  g e n e r a l  d i s t r i b u t i o n  throughout  t h e  r e s e r v a t i o n s  and among t h e  

Seminole I n d i a n s  i n  F l o r i d a .  She t e s t i f i e d  t h a t  s h e  spoke by te lephone  

with s e v e r a l  pe rsons  a t  t h e  t r i b a l  o f f i c e  of t h e  Miccosukee T r i b e  of  Ind ians  

of F l o r i d a  i n c l u d i n g  A l i c e  Day who is t h e  sister of Howard Osceola (who is Co- 

Chairman of t h e  Everglades  Miccosukee T r i b e  of Seminole I n d i a n s )  and 

l i v e s  i n  t h e  same community as h e r  b r o t h e r ,  t h a t  she informed t h e s e  

pe rsons  of t h e  meet ing,  and t h a t  s h e  asked t h o s e  w i t h  whom she spoke t o  



inform o t h e r  persons.  She f u r t h e r  t e s t i f i e d  t h a t  t o  her  knowledge the 

Everglades Miccosukee Tribe  of Seminole Indians does not have an office. 

Asked whether she  believed t h e  lat ter group knew of t h e  meeting, she 

t e s t i f i e d  as follows: 

We hand d i s t r i b u t e  anything of importance which 
is regard ing  t h e  Ind ians  of t h e  Seminole Tribe, and 
we always mail a copy t o  t h e  Miccosukee T r i b a l  Office, 
and these  independent Miccosukees, as they c a l l  them- 
selves, they  go t o  t h i s  o f f i c e  i n  and ou t ,  and they 
a r e  a l s o  my r e l a t i v e s  and we t a l k ,  and I ' m  aure t h a t  
they knew. 

Michael Tiger  t e s t i f i e d  t h a t  he l i v e s  on t h e  Hollywood Indian  

Reservat ion and t h a t  he is a member of t h e  Board of D i r ec to r s  of t h e  

Seminole Tribe of F lo r ida ,  Incorporated,  which is  the economic develop- 

ment base of the Seminole Tribe of F lor ida .  M r .  Tiger  t e s t i f i e d  tha t  he 

persona l ly  met with John Oeceola, Jr., whose f a t h e r  is a member of t h e  

Executive Council of t h e  Everglades Miccoaukee Tr ibe  o f  Seminole 

Ind ians ;  t h a t  he d i scussed  the meeting and the proposed se t t l emen t  

a copy of the pr in t ed  n o t i c e  of t h e  meeting. He f u r t h e r  t e s t i f i e d  t h a t  

a copy of the  n o t i c e  was posted a t  t h e  Miccosukee Tribal o f f i c e ,  t h a t  

persons l i v i n g  i n  t h e  three camps near  Naples f r equen t ly  pas8 i n  and 

ou t  of t h a t  o f f i c e ,  and t h a t ,  i n  h i s  opinion,  t he se  persons must have 

known about t h e  meeting. 

Paul Buster t e s t i f i e d  t h a t  he resides on the Big Cypreae Rwmmtion  

and that he is a member of t h e  t r i b a l  counc i l  of t he  Seminole Tribe of 

Flor ida .  H e  t e s t i f i e d  t h a t  he peremally distributed approximately 
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50 m i t t e n  n o t i c e s  of t h e  meeting t o  Seminoles l i v i n g  i n  t h e  I m o k a l e e  

a r e a  who a r e  members of t h e  Miccosukee Tr ibe  and t h a t  t h e s e  Ind ians  a r e  

r e l a t e d  t o ,  s o c i a l i z e  and in te rmarry  w i t h  thee Miccosukees l i v i n g  i n  

t h e  camps near  Naples. H e  t e s t i f i e d  t h a t  s e v e r a l  of t he  l a t t e r  Miccosukees 

a t tended  the  January 22 ,  1976, meeting, and t h a t  s i n c e  they  a t tended  t h e  

meeting they must have had n o t i c e  of i t .  

B i l l  Osceola t e s t i f i e d  t h a t  he is a Bapt i s t  Minis te r  and is a l s o  

t h e  Pres ident  of t h e  Board of  D i r ec to r s  of t h e  Seminole Tr ibe  of F lo r ida ,  

Inc .  He s t a t e d  t h a t  he l a  a  Miccosukee but belongs t o  t he  Seminole 

T r i b e  of F lor ida .  H e  t e s t i f i e d  t h a t  t h e  claim and t h e  proposed set t le-  

ment thereof  were gene ra l l y  discussed by Seminole Ind ians ,  t h a t  t h e  

meeting was a mat te r  of common information among Seminoles, and t h a t  

he bel ieved t h a t  t h e  ma jo r i t y  of Seminoles s u r e l y  knew about t he  

meeting. 

S tan ley  Johns t e s t i f i e d  t h a t  he is the t r i b a l  councilman from the  

Brighton Reservat ion.  H e  t e s t i f i e d  t h a t  w r i t t e n  n o t i c e  of t he  meeting 

was posted a t  f i v e  l o c a t i o n s  on t h e  Brighton Reservat ion,  When asked 

whether he be l ieved  t h e  Everglades Miccosukees knew of t h e  meeting he 

responded as fol lows:  

I would say, yes,  s i r .  . , They would have t o  know 
because i ts  i n  t h e  news media, on t e l e v i s i o n ,  r a d i o s ,  
newspapers. . . because t h i s  had been t a lked  about 
f o r  20 years. 

Edwin Tanyan t e s t i f i e d  t h a t  he is Chief of t h e  Seminole Nation of 

Oklahoma; t h a t  t h e  l e g i s l a t i v e  body of t h e  Seminole Nation of Oklahoma 
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is t h e  Seminole General Council, which is composed of 42 counci l  members, 

who represent  t he  14 bands of t h e  Seminole Nation, and each band ha8 a 

band ch ie f ;  t h a t  i t  is t h e  custom of the  Seminole Nation of Oklahoma 

t o  b r ing  the  band ch ie fa  together  and discuee important ma t t e r r  with them 

so t h a t  they i n  tu rn  can c a l l  t h e i r  band members together  and discus8 

such mat te rs  with them i n  band counci l s ;  that the General Council maker 

a l l  the dec is ions  r e l a t i v e  t o  t h e  affair8 of the  t r i b e ,  including t r i b a l  

l e v e l  funds, tribal programs, Indian Claims se t t lements ,  and c o n t r a c t s  

with a t to rneys ,  and t h a t  t h e  General Council authorized t h e  appearance 

of t h e  present  witnesses t o  appear a t  the  hearing on behalf of t h e  

Seminole Nation of Oklahoma. He f u r t h e r  t e s t i f i e d  t h a t  hir  s igna tu re  

appears  on the  r e so lu t ion  of t he  Seminole General Council of J u l y  19, 

1975, and t h a t  t h e  o t h e r  s igna tu re  thereon is t h a t  of Corgna England, 

Secre tary  of t h e  General Council; t h a t  t h i s  r e so lu t ion  was approved by 

t h e  Muskogee Area Office; t h a t  an agent from the  Area Office i r  u rua l ly  

present  a t  General Coynf&l fleeting?; twt the  Resolution of J u l y  19,  

1975, was t h e  first r e so lu t ion  passed by the Seminole General Council by 

a vote of 34 i n  favor o f ,  and none againat, and d i r ec t ed  the  claime a t to rney  

t o  consummate the se t t lement ,  and approved the  proposed settlement for 

not  less than $16,000,000; t h a t  subsequent t o  the  counci l  m e t i n g  of 

July 19, 1975, t he  counci l  members had another meeting with t h e  band 

ch ie f s ,  during which the  set t lement  was again discussed a t  length,  and t h e  

band c h i e f s  i n  turn discussed the se t t lement  i n  meeting8 of t h e i r  r e spec t ive  

bands, to  determine the consensus of opinion of the sweral band., and a t  
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the General Council meeting of September 27, 1975, a second resolution 

was approved agreeing to accept said settlement. He also testified that 

notice was give to individual council members, and since the county in 

which they live is small it is easy to get information out to the people; 

that the standard procedure is that all council meetings are published 

in the local papers in the two cities, Wewoka and Seminole, and the 

Secretary made a special effort to get the agenda of the council meetings 

out so that the members would know that the settlement would be considered 

at the council meetings; that notices were also given by radio by the 

Assistant Chief, who is a radio announcer; that any member of the Seminole 

Nation of Oklahoma can attend the General Council meetings, and i8 

welcome; that in the councils in which the resolutions approving the 

settlement were approved there was general discussion of the proposed 

settlement, and the settlement was agreed to; that the Indians generally 

wanted more money, but settled for $l6,000,000;that their claims 

attorney, Paul M. Niebell, outlined the terms of the proposed settlement 

in a letter dated July 15, 1975, addressed to him as Chieethat minutes 

are taken at the council meetings, and matters are explained in English 

and interpreted in the Seminole language by the Chief or the Assistant 

Chief, so that matters are pretty generally understood; that they are 

in the process of making a new roll; that the Bureau of Indian Affairs 

fixed their membership at 7,500, but there are more than that; that they 

have a Miccosukee band, and 374 members of that band have been processed, 

but that the number of Miccosukees should reach 600. 
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Tom Palmer testified that he is the elected Assistant Chief of the 

Seminole Nation of Oklahoma; that he corroborates the statements of 

Chief Edwin Tanyan; that he is convinced that everyone having an intereet 

in the settlement got word of it in one way or another; that he has a 

radio show twice a week and gives newscasts in English and Seminole 

languages; and that he announced the proposed settlement over the radio 

several times before the several council meetings. 

Corena Mae England testified that she is the tribal council Secretary, 

and since last December 2 2 ,  1975, she has also been the tribal secretary; 

that she takes the minutes of the general council, and sends them to 

the Muskogee Area Office, and they are sent to Washington, D. C., and 

approved by the Interior Department; that her signature appears on 

the Seminole General Council Resolutions of July 19, 1975, and September 

27, 1975, and that she corroborates the testimony of Chief Tanyan and 

Tom Palmer; that an effort was made to give notice to all member8 of 

the Seminole Nation of Oklahoma, and nothing more could be done to 

acquaint them of the proposed settlement; and that they received telephone 

calls about the settlement from as far away as California. 

15. Conclusions of Law. Based upon the entire record in these 

proceedings, the testimony of the witnesses, the representations of 

counsel, and all other pertinent facts before us, the Coxmnission con- 

cludes as follows: 

(a) Notice of the meeting on January 22, 1976, of the Florida 

Seminoles was videly diclaeminated among all political group8 of S s i n o h .  
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and, i n  view of such wide d i ssemina t ion ,  t h e  g r e a t  major i ty  of t h e  members 

of t h e  Seminole T r ibe  of F lo r ida ,  t h e  Miccosukee Tr ibe  of F lo r ida ,  and 

t h e  Everglades Miccosukee Tr ibe  of  Seminole Ind ians  must have known 

t h a t  s a id  meeting was t o  be held.  

(b) A s  evidenced by t h e  n e a r l y  unanimous vo t e  i n  favor  of accept ing  

t h e  s e t t l emen t  a t  t he  January 22,  1976, meeting of t he  F lo r ida  Semholes ,  

t he  Seminole Indians of F lo r ida  have f r e e l y  en te red  i n t o  s a i d  se t t l ement .  

(c )  The Seminole Nation of Oklahoma has, i n  accordance wi th  i ts  

c o n s t i t u t i o n a l  and t r a d i t i o n a l  p o l i t i c a l  p rocedures , f ree ly  en te red  i n t o  

sa id  s e t t l emen t ,  

(d) The proposed compromise se t t l ement  is f a i r  t o  a l l  p a r t i e s  

and has  been approved by t h e  duly au thor ized  r e p r e s e n t a t i v e  of the  

Sec re t a ry  of t h e  I n t e r i o r .  

The Commission hereby approves t h e  proposed compromise s e t t l emen t  

and w i l l  e n t e r  f i n a l  judgment i n  Dockets 73 and 151, consol ida ted ,  i n  

t he  amount of $16,000,000, i n  favor  of the p l a i n t i f f s  i n  Docket 73, t h e  

Seminole Indians of  the  S t a t e  of F lo r ida ,  and t h e  p l a i n t i f f s  i n  Docket 151, 

t he  Seminole Nation of Oklahoma, on behalf of t he  Seminole Nation a s  it 

ex i s t ed  i n  F lo r ida  on September 18, 1823, sub jec t  t o  t h e  terms and 

provis ions  of t h e  S t i p u l a t i o n  f o r  Entry of F ina l  Judgment. 

w V 

- -  . . 2 
dohn T. Vance, Commissioner \ 


